
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
D. PROCLAMATIONS  

1. 55th Graduation Anniversary - University City High School Class of 1964  
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. July 8, 2019 Regular Session Minutes 
2. July 8, 2019 Study Session Minutes – Dog Park 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
1. Eleanor Mullin and Karla Teeters Brown are nominated for re-appointment to Municipal Commission on Arts 

and Letters by Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
2. James Nowogrocki is nominated to the Civil Service Board replacing Barbara Sydnor’s expired term by 

Mayor Terry Crow 
 

G. SWEARING IN to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS  
 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Liquor License - DJ Food Inc. (East Seoul Oriental Grocery Store) 
2. Liquor License - Poke Doke Restaurant  

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA – Vote Required 

1. Liquor License Approval – DJ Food Inc. (East Seoul Oriental Grocery Store) 
2. Liquor License Approval – Poke Doke Restaurant 
3. Position Reclassification – Parks Crew Leader  
4. Ackert Walkway Improvements – Transportation Alternatives Program Approval 
5. Fogerty Park Phase II Improvements Contract Approval 
6. MS Office 365 Migration and Contract Approval 
7. Leaf Collection Contract Approval 
8. Sidewalks and Curb Contract Approval 
9. Electric Vehicles Purchase Approval (Inspectors) 
10. EMS Ambulance and Equipment Purchase 
11. EMS Ambulance Remount Purchase 
12. Conditional Use Permit Extension Approval – Church of Scientology 
13. Solar Group Buy – Grow Solar (Authority to Support) 
  

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Economic Development Retail Sales Tax (EDRST) Funding Request 
2. Update - Olive / 170 Redevelopment Project 
3. Update - Area Flooding Issues 

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, August 12, 2019  
6:30 p.m. 



 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTIONS 
1. Resolution 2019 - 11 Municipal Park Grant - Mooney/Kaufman Park 
2. Resolution 2019 - 12 Municipal Park Grant - Greensfelder Park  
3. Resolution 2019 - 13 Municipal Park Grant – Ackert Park 

 
BILLS  
 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Q. Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statues 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes of 

action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public government body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
R. ADJOURNMENT  



 

 
                  PROCLAMATION 
                             OF THE 
                    CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
 
 
 
WHEREAS; The Mayor and City Council Members of the great City of University City take pause to 
celebrate notable events; and 
 
WHEREAS; The University City High School class of 1964 is celebrating their 55th reunion; and  
 
WHEREAS; The Class of 1964 is renowned for classmates of great achievement in many  fields 
including  medicine, law, education, commerce and industry, music, fine and performing arts, 
government, finance, and philanthropy, and for being loving parents and grandparents; and 
 
WHEREAS; classmates have remained connected over the years through common interests, bonds of 
every-lasting friendships, and through personal and social media; and  
 
WHEREAS; classmates have gathered from across these United States of America and from countries 
abroad to celebrate the 55th anniversary of their high school graduation; and 
 
WHEREAS; the Class of 1964 has raised substantial funds for the benefit of current University City High 
School students in their quest to earn early college credits. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of University City, Missouri do hereby proclaim that September, 
22 2019 shall hereby, now an forevermore be known in the great City of University City as  

 
 

UNIVERSITY CITY HIGH SCHOOL CLASS OF 1964 DAY 
 
WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of the City of University City to be 
affixed this 12TH day of August in the year Two Thousand and Nineteen. 
 

 
 SEAL  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 ATTEST  
  City Clerk, LaRette Reese 

 

D - 1 - 1



D - 1 - 2



Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 
 
 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on the fifth floor of City
Hall, on Monday, July 8, 2019, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay  
Councilmember Paulette Carr 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
Councilmember Tim Cusick 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson; (Excused) 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose, and City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, 
Jr.   

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Councilmember Cusick moved to approve the agenda as presented, it was seconded by
Councilmember Carr and the motion carried unanimously.

D. PROCLAMATIONS
1. Parks and Recreation Month - A Proclamation designating July as Parks and Recreation

Month in the City of U City.

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. June 10, 2019, Regular Session Minutes were moved by Councilmember Carr, it was

seconded by Councilmember Cusick and the motion carried unanimously.
2. June 17, 2019, Study Session Minutes (FY20 Annual Operating Budget and CIP), were

moved by Councilmember Carr, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales and the
motion carried unanimously.

3. June 24, 2019, Joint Study Session Minutes (Plan Commission), were moved by
Councilmember Carr, it was seconded by Councilmember Cusick and the motion carried
unanimously.

4. June 24, 2019, Regular Session Minutes were moved by Councilmember Carr, it was
seconded by Councilmember Cusick and the motion carried unanimously.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
1. The University City School Board appointed Matt Bellows to the Economic Development

Retails Sales Tax Board replacing Kristine Hendrix effective July 2019.

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, July 8, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

1. Tony Westbrooks was sworn into the Board of Trustees Fund on July 3rd in the Clerk’s 
office. 

2. Edward Deitzler was sworn into the Board of Trustees Fund on July 3rd in the Clerk’s 
office. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Donna McGhee, 7584 Melrose, University City, MO 
Ms. McGhee stated in spite of the fact that employees of the Forestry and Street 
Department have done a great job in their attempts to assist her with this problem, the tree 
is still growing and so are her issues with its encroachment on her property.  Branches are 
protruding past her property line; the roots are pushing through the recently laid asphalt 
near the base of her driveway causing her to park on the street, and there is a constant 
need to clean up all the debris.  The bottom line is that this Sycamore tree was planted in 
the wrong place because they need an open area to grow.  Ms. McGhee stated she has 
gone full circle trying to resolve this problem, appearing at the Park Commission and 
Council meetings on numerous occasions.  Nonetheless, she will continue to do so until 
someone honors her simple request to have the tree removed and possibly replaced with a 
smaller variety.  
 
Jerrold Tiers, 7345 Chamberlain, University City, MO 
Mr. Tiers stated his neighbors hired a contractor to replace their deck using the same 
footprint, but it took him one whole day to get a permit before he could even start the work.  
These unnecessary delays over simple, routine replacements are the type of issues that 
cause contractors to dislike and even refuse to accept work in U City.  And he is at a loss to 
understand why things that are routine in other municipalities are a problem in U City?  Mr. 
Tiers stated he certainly hopes this sort of problem with approvals and the need to take 
prompt action will not occur with the City's new partner, NOVUS, who will be managing a 
much larger project with complex plans.  U City is going to have to step up and expedite its 
processes in order to establish a more competent and professional operation. 
 
Aren Ginsberg, 430 West Point Court, University City, MO 
Ms. Ginsberg stated with all of the discussions about the Dog Park, U City's Trap, Neuter, 
Return members wanted to keep everyone updated about BARC's low-cost neuter, 
vaccination, and de-worming opportunities.  With proof of low-income, anyone can utilize 
this service for $15.00 per cat and $25.00 per dog, by calling to schedule an appointment at 
(314) 771-7387.  TNR has also been sharing an article about trap, neuter, return, Working 
Cats, which provides rodent control for communities.  According to Manatee Animal Control 
Service, "If you have a problem with vermin, rats or mice, this is an ideal solution".  Ms. 
Ginsberg stated in the past two weeks, TNR Volunteers working in the 3rd Ward have 
trapped, neutered, vaccinated and returned eight adult cats and sent four kittens to rescue. 
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
J. CONSENT AGENDA – Vote Required 

1. Annual Renewal City of Chesterfield (St. Louis APWA Cooperative) – Road Salt and 
Delivery Purchase. 

E - 1 - 2



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

2. An Agreement to Terminate the Dog Play Area Improvement and Maintenance 
Agreement with U. City People for Dogs, Inc. ("People for Dogs") 

 
3. Facilities Manager and Project Manager – Utility Construction Positions - Revision  
 
Citizen's Comments 
Damien Ford, 7162 Vernon Avenue, University City, MO 
Mr. Ford stated he is a professionally trained dog sitter for a company called Fur Real Fun, 
who requires its employees to be certified in pet first aid, pet sociology, and the ability to deal 
with large groups of animals.  He stated while he is in favor of the City taking over the Dog 
Park, he had expressed some of his company's concerns to the Park Director, as well as his 
desire to be included in future discussions regarding the type of rules that need to be 
established and the enforcement of those rules.  Because self-policing is something they 
would like to see continued.  Mr. Ford stated his hope is that as the City moves forward with 
this venture it will provide the public with information on a timely basis in order to promote 
community interaction and engagement.  
 
Morgan Matz, 7248 Amherst, University City, MO 
Ms. Matz concurred with Damien's comments regarding the need to allow public engagement 
prior to the City making any changes in policies or procedures to the Dog Park.   
 
Susan Bourey, 7245 Princeton, University City, MO 
Ms. Bourey stated she has been going to the Dog Park three or four times a week since 
January and often sees the dog walkers there who take very good care of their dogs.  In fact, 
she tries to go at the same time they are there because her dogs enjoy playing with their 
dogs.  And the only time she has ever experienced any issues was with individual dog 
owners.    Ms. Bourey stated she had no idea People for Dogs wanted to pass this on to the 
City, but either way, she would like to get involved as a volunteer because she wants the park 
to continue.  In her opinion, it's much better for the City to provide a place for active dogs to 
run and play, but the main reason she wants to see it continue is that everyone who goes 
there loves it.    
 
Bryce Kehoe, 6552 Corbitt, University City, MO 
Mr. Kehoe stated the City has been beating on this issue about the Dog Park for over a year 
now, so he was surprised to learn that it was still a topic of discussion.  Obviously, the City 
has more resources to maintain the park than an individual organization, so in his mind, this 
would be a good transition for everyone who utilizes this area.  The City has also been 
beating on this thing about chickens for a long time and since it's something he would like to 
do, he thinks it's time to get this issue resolved as well.    
 
Councilmember Hales moved to approve all three items on the Consent Agenda; it was 
seconded by Councilmember Clay. 
 

E - 1 - 3



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Councilmember Clay stated he wanted to acknowledge the position of Project Manager, 
which includes oversight of the construction being conducted in the City by its utility partners.  
This is an issue that both he and Councilmember Smotherson have brought up on several 
occasions, so he is looking forward to seeing how the Project Manager progresses with 
managing these entities. 
 
Voice vote on the motion to approve carried unanimously.   
   

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. BILL 9387 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY 

OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO 7098.  Bill Number 9387 was read for 
the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Carr moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Carr, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, 
Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

2. BILL 9388 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 510.060 AND 510.080 OF THE 
UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND 
TAX ABATEMENT OR EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 353 OF THE 
REVISED STATUTES OF MISSOURI.  Bill Number 9388 was read for the second and 
third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Carr. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Cusick, 
Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Carr, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

3. BILL 9389 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 210, ARTICLE I (ANIMALS 
GENERALLY) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, BY 
AMENDING SECTION 210.030 THEREOF, RELATING TO CHICKENS; CONTAINING 
A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND PROVIDING A PENALTY.  Bill Number 9389 was read for 
the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Carr. 
 
Citizen's Comments 
Kathy Straatmann, 6855 Plymouth Avenue, University City, MO 
Ms. Straatmann stated in the country, cats lived in the barn to keep the mice and rat population 
under control; dogs borough a hole under one of the out-buildings and lived on squirrels, 
rabbits, and table scraps, and chickens lived in a coup where you would often find snakes.  E - 1 - 4



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Councilmember Smotherson informed her that this Resolution is probably going to pass, so it's 
something she's going to have to live with.  But when country girls move to the city they don't 
pack up their chickens and bring them with them because it's not the kind of animal they are 
going to miss.  Ms. Straatmann stated there was a young woman who spoke at the last 
meeting asking for fewer restrictions on chicken owners, however, she would like to see some 
type of restrictions and monitoring because chicken coups can get pretty gross.  
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember 
Carr, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

4. BILL 9390 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 115.270 OF THE UNIVERSITY 
CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO PARKS AND RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 
DESIGNATED, BY DESIGNATING THE DOG PLAY AREA AS A PARK.  Bill Number 
9390 was read for the second and third time. 
 

Councilmember Cusick moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Carr, Councilmember 
McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
M. NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTIONS 
        Introduced by Councilmember Carr 

1. Resolution 2019-10 - Establishes ambulance billing procedures and fees when service 
is provided by the University City Fire and EMS.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Hales. 
 

Mr. Mulligan stated this Resolution executes and administers an existing policy passed by City 
Council several years ago, which decrees that any person using the City's in-house ambulance 
service shall be charged one or more fees for the use as may be established from time-to-time.  
The City has not had an occasion to impose these fees due to its contract with an outside 
provider; which is still in effect.  But with the impending transition to an in-house service the 
Fire Department has requested that Council establish the same fees currently being utilized by 
one of its neighboring jurisdictions; namely, the City of Ladue.  However, should staff 
determine that this rate is not in line with the City's actual costs, the Resolution specifically 
states that Council may adjust these fees after it has had the opportunity to consider the actual 
cost of services.  So moving forward, Council could be presented with additional 
recommendations to address some of the changes that might be needed.    
 
Mayor Crow noted that the Resolution had one typographical error on page 1, and requested 
that "disposals," be amended to read "disposables". 
 
Voice vote on the motion to approve the Resolution carried unanimously.   

 
BILLS 

E - 1 - 5



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilmember Clay stated based on his belief that there are far weightier things Council is 
wrestling with; he really does not see Bill Number 9389 as a particularly significant movement 
either way; because irrespective of the price point the fee reduction from $50.00 to $25.00 will 
not cause the City to realize a significant generation of revenue.   Nevertheless, he would like 
to highlight one point he thinks Council should give some consideration to, and that is the 
signaling associated with this reduction.  While this is a voluntary action, the City has 
established fees for several of its amenities which are not optional and can be challenging for 
some residents; refuse service, sewer lateral programs, et cetera.  So, in his mind, to institute 
a fee reduction on something that is an option is a little concerning.   
 
Councilmember McMahon stated if you go back to when the Ordinance was first passed there 
were only five permits in the entire City.  But when you coupled that with the fees being 
charged overtime for multiple inspections, what could reasonably be determined is that the 
number of people who owned chickens equaled more than five and that many of those owners 
were not applying for permits.  In essence, while the Ordinance permitted folks to own 
chickens, the fee was created as a deterrent to stop people from owning them.  In fact, there 
is a statement in the minutes of that meeting which basically says, "We're going to have them, 
but we are going to do it in a way that says we are not going to have them."  He stated, as a 
result, it became pretty obvious that members of this Council were trying to appease both 
sides by saying one thing and doing another.  However, this Council's philosophy is either we 
are going to have chickens, or we're not going to have them.  And if we are going to allow 
them, then it only made sense to impose a reasonable fee and inspection schedule.  So to the 
folks who presented him with their concerns about the need to address this issue; the wheels 
may turn slowly, but Council has finally got it done. 
 
Mayor Crow made the following announcements: 

• City Council is on its summer schedule and will be conducting only one meeting in the 
months of July and August.  The next Council meeting will be held on August 12th.   

• The Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board will meet tomorrow at 6 p.m. on 
the 5th floor of City Hall. 

• On August 6th, the Police Department and the Neighborhood Watch Focus Group are 
partnering with the School District to conduct a rally at the McNair Administrative 
Building in celebration of National Night Out against crime.  Donations can be made by 
contacting Captain Dana Morley.   

 
Q. Roll-Call vote to go into a Closed Council Session according to RSMo 610.021 (1)Legal 

actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any 
confidential or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its 
representatives and its attorneys. E - 1 - 6



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Councilmember Cusick moved to go into a Closed Session; it was seconded by 
Councilmember Carr. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Cusick, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember 
Carr, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Crow closed the regular City Council meeting at 7:08 p.m. to go into a Closed Session 
on the second floor.  The Closed Session was reconvened in an open session and adjourned 
at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 

E - 1 - 7



E - 1 - 8



E - 1 - 9



E - 1 - 10



E - 1 - 11



E - 1 - 12



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

STUDY SESSION 
OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL 

5th Floor of City Hall 
6801 Delmar 
July 8, 2019 

 
 
AGENDA 
Requested by the City Manager 
 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
The City Council Study Session was held in Council Chambers on the fifth floor of City Hall, 
on Monday, July 8, 2019.  Mayor Terry Crow called the Study Session to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present: 
 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Paulette Carr 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
   Councilmember Tim Cusick 
   Councilmember Stacy Clay; (Arrived at 5:32 p.m.) 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson; (Excused) 

 
  

Also, in attendance was City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan Jr., 
and Director of Parks, Recreation, and Forestry, Darren Dunkle. 
 

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

3. DOG PARK DISCUSSION 
 

Mr. Rose stated tonight's presentation involves a proposal to terminate the City's agreement 
with U City's People for Dogs, Inc.  In 2018, Mr. Rose stated he was approached by a 
representative of People for Dogs who informed him that they were no longer able to keep the 
number of volunteers needed to effectively manage the Dog Park and wanted to know if the 
City would be interested in absorbing their operation.  So this year when Mr. Dunkle was 
brought on board as the Director of Parks, Recreation, and Forestry, one of his first projects 
was to conduct a comprehensive appraisal of the business to determine what impact it would 
have on the City if Council should elect to honor this request.   
 
Mr. Dunkle provided Council with the following overview of the Proposed Agreement: 
 
DOG PLAY AREA IMPROVEMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

• The City entered into an agreement with U. City People for Dogs, Inc., a 501©(3) not-
for-profit charitable corporation in 2002. 
 

 
AS PART OF THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT, THE CITY WOULD:  

• Designate City-owned property on Vernon near Pennsylvania as a “dog play area” 
E - 2 - 1



Page 2 of 4 

• Cut grass and collect refuse
• Collect license fees; (Current Fees - $40-Resident and $60 – Non-Resident)

U. CITY PEOPLE FOR DOGS, INC. WOULD:
• Construct fences and other structures
• Establish rules and regulations
• Maintain property and improvements

TERMS OF THE PROPOSAL TO TERMINATE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT 
• The City will accept full responsibility for the overall maintenance and operation of the

U City Dog Park
• The City will collect and keep all fees
• The City will establish the Dog Park as a City Park via Ordinance
• The City will establish new rules and regulations adopted by the Ordinance
• U. City People for Dogs, Inc. will relinquish all on-site assets to the City.
• U. City People for Dogs, Inc. will donate $20,000 to the City for the construction of a

pavilion at the Dog Park. (i.e., similar to the structure at Queeny Park)
• U City People for Dogs, Inc. will continue to volunteer and assist the City in its

programs and activities for dogs

Mr. Rose stated he received a question regarding the impact this transition would have on the 
City's liability insurance, and after discussing the matter with the provider found that there would be 
no additional costs unless the City opted to insure the fence on the property which would cost a de 
minimis amount. 

Councilmember Cusick asked whether the corporation's 501© (3) would be dissolved?  Mr. Rose 
stated even though they would no longer be responsible for the Dog Park that decision would be 
left up to the organization.  Councilmember Cusick asked if an appraisal had been made to 
determine the total cost of constructing a pavilion?  Mr. Rose stated the cost of the pavilion will be 
determined based on the design, and unless Council directs staff to do otherwise, their goal is to 
find a design that can be built for $20,000. 

Councilmember Carr stated she had received several emails referencing problems with the 
enforcement of rules and the safety of dogs.  So at this point, does staff know what kind of rules 
will be established and how they will be enforced?  Mr. Rose stated under normal circumstances, 
Dog Parks operate on a self-policing basis because typically, the same people bring their pets to 
the park and normally do a good job of policing themselves.  However, should a situation arise 
where someone does not play well in the sandbox with others, then the City's police will have the 
authority to step in.  There will also be signs posted displaying park rules.  His hope is that these 
types of incidents will be the exception and not the norm, but the park will be included in the Police 
Department's areas to be patrolled.    

Councilmember Carr stated her understanding is that currently each owner can bring up to three 
dogs to the park.  Mr. Dunkle stated that is correct.  Councilmember Carr asked if that policy would 
remain under the City's leadership?   
Mr. Rose stated staff will be working with the Park Commission to develop rules for the park and 
the number will be decided based on their determination of exactly how many dogs the park can 
accommodate at any given time. 

E - 2 - 2



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Councilmember Carr stated this afternoon's discussion touched on dog sitters who bring in more 
than three dogs; their ability to handle more than three dogs and the question of whether all of their 
dogs are actually members.  Does staff have any ideas about how to handle those kinds of things?  
Mr. Rose stated the intent is to vet those types of issues through the Park Commission and bring 
their recommendations back to the Mayor and Council for review. 
 
Councilmember Clay asked whether memberships would still be required once the City takes over 
management of the Dog Park?  Mr. Mulligan stated technically, you did not have to be a member 
of People for Dogs to visit the park.  Everyone is welcome as long as their dog has a tag, which is 
purchased from the City's Finance Department.  Councilmember Clay questioned how this fee 
aligned with the spirit of City parks?   
 
Mayor Crow stated the Dog Park is analogous to the golf course or the swimming pool, where 
people pay a fee to utilize those services.  And unless he's missing something, the only reason the 
City is stepping in is because People for Dogs asked for this transition.  He stated the tenor of 
some of the emails he received seems to reflect that this transition was the City's idea, so he would 
like to reassure everyone that the City is merely honoring a request by an organization that is no 
longer able to manage the park.   
 
Councilmember Clay stated while he understands this is an amenity, it also tethers the City to 
certain obligations in perpetuity.  Is staff able to provide a picture of what the revenue from this 
amenity looks like?  Mr. Rose stated at this point, staff does not have sufficient knowledge 
regarding the costs associated with maintaining the park, so the initial intent is to absorb the 
current fees and policies that have already been established.  However, once staff has gained that 
experience, they will be in a better position to recommend whether a fee is appropriate or what, if 
any, changes should be brought before Council for review.  
 
Mr. Mulligan stated with respect to the transition, the current Ordinance which establishes this area 
as a Dog Play Area will remain in effect, and until such time as the City Manager makes a 
recommendation to amend or draft new rules, the park will be subject to the rules and regulations 
established in October of 2012.  He stated the next step is to have a meeting with the President of 
People for Dogs in the near future to obtain any records and discuss operational issues to ensure 
a seamless transition.   (Mr. Mulligan informed Council that a copy of the current rules have been 
included in their packets.) 
 
Councilmember Clay questioned whether each phase of this transition would be reviewed by the 
Park Commission and presented to Council through the normal recommendation process?  Mr. 
Rose stated that it would be.     
Mayor Crow asked Mr. Dunkle if he knew the number of current licenses the City has on file?  Mr. 
Dunkle stated there are approximately 300 resident/non-resident licenses on file, and last year the 
park brought in $14,800. 
 
Mayor Crow stated for the benefit of members of the public, this item will be on Council's Agenda 
tonight for a vote, so if anyone is interested in speaking on this topic during the public comment 
section please be sure to fill out a sign-in sheet located next to the door.  
 
Councilmember Clay questioned whether this property could ever be reverted back to its original 
state once it is designated as a City Park?   

E - 2 - 3



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Mulligan informed Councilmember Clay that the Termination Agreement specifically states that 
the City has no obligation to continuously maintain this piece of property as a dog park.   
 
Mayor Crow asked whether it was correct, that the City would be unable to dispose of the land 
once it is designated as a park? Mr. Mulligan stated it cannot be disposed of without a vote of the 
people.  However, there is a question as to whether or not the City is already at that point?   
 
Councilmember Clay asked if his understanding was correct; the land could cease to function as a 
dog park, but it would always remain as a park unless there was a vote of the people to do 
otherwise?  Mr. Mulligan stated that his understanding was correct.   
 
Councilmember Hales moved to go into a Closed Session; it was seconded by Councilmember 
McMahon. 
 

4. Roll-Call vote to go into a Closed Council Session according to RSMo 610.021 
(1)Legal actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental 
body and any confidential or privileged communications between a public 
governmental body or its representatives and its attorneys. 
 

Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Carr, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Cusick, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow.  
Nays:  None. 
 

 
5. Adjournment  5:48 - 6:23 

Mayor Crow closed the Study Session at 5:46 p.m. to go into a Closed Session 
on the second floor.  The Closed Session was adjourned at 6:23 p.m. and 
Council reconvened in an open session at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

E - 2 - 4



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE: August 12, 2019    

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Liquor License for DJ Food Inc., dba East Seoul Oriental 
Grocery – 8619 Olive Blvd 

AGENDA SECTION:   Public Hearing 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?       Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

DJ Food, Inc., dba East Seoul Oriental Grocery has applied for Intoxicating Liquor of 
All Kinds, by the Package, Retail liquor license including Sunday Liquor License.   

The Applicant / Managing Officer:  Anthony Lee 

• A background check / investigation by the Police Department revealed no disqualifying
information.

• Department Approval was granted from all necessary departments.
• A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the Missouri Department of Revenue

was received relative to the business.
• 2018 personal property tax record for the applicant indicates payment of taxes.
• Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was provided.

Report from Police Department is included with Consent Item #1 

I - 1 - 1



 
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019       
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Liquor License for Poke Doke, 6316 Delmar Blvd  
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Public Hearing  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?       No 
 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:     
 
Poke Doke has applied for All Kinds of Intoxicating Liquor, by the Drink, Retail liquor 
license including Sunday Liquor License.   
 
The Applicant / Managing Officer is Robert Hu 
 

• A background check / investigation by the Police Department revealed no disqualifying 
information. 

• Department Approval was granted from all necessary departments. 
• Recommendations from University City citizens are included. 
• Petition from business owners within a radius of 200 feet are included. 
• A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the Missouri Department of Revenue 

was received relative to the business. 
• 2018 personal property tax record for the applicant indicates payment of taxes. 
• Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was provided. 

 
Report from Police Department is included with Consent Item #2 
 
 

I - 2 - 1



 
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019      
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Liquor License for DJ Food Inc., dba East Seoul Oriental 

Grocery – 8619 Olive Blvd  
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Consent  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?       Yes 
 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:    DJ Food, Inc., dba East Seoul Oriental Grocery has 
applied for Intoxicating Liquor of All Kinds, by the Package, Retail liquor license 
including Sunday Liquor License.   
 
The Applicant / Managing Officer:  Anthony Lee 
 

• A background check / investigation by the Police Department revealed no disqualifying 
information. 

• Department Approval was granted from all necessary departments. 
• A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the Missouri Department of Revenue 

was received relative to the business. 
• 2018 personal property tax record for the applicant indicates payment of taxes. 
• Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was provided. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Manager recommends the approval of the Liquor License. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT:  Report from Police Department. 

J - 1- 1



J - 1- 2



J - 1- 3



J - 1- 4



J - 1- 5



J - 1- 6



J - 1- 7



J - 1- 8



J - 1- 9



J - 1- 10



J - 1- 11



J - 1- 12



J - 1- 13



J - 1- 14



J - 1- 15



J - 1- 16



J - 1- 17



J - 1- 18



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019       

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Liquor License for Poke Doke, 6316 Delmar Blvd 

AGENDA SECTION:   Consent  

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?       Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    Poke Doke has applied for All Kinds of Intoxicating Liquor, 
by the Drink, Retail liquor license including Sunday Liquor License.   

The Applicant / Managing Officer is Robert Hu 

• A background check / investigation by the Police Department revealed no disqualifying
information.

• Department Approval was granted from all necessary departments.
• Recommendations from University City citizens are included.
• Petition from business owners within a radius of 200 feet are included.
• A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the Missouri Department of Revenue

was received relative to the business.
• 2018 personal property tax record for the applicant indicates payment of taxes.
• Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was provided.

ATTACHMENT: Report from Police Department 

RECOMMENDATION: City Manager recommends the approval of the Liquor License.  

J - 2 - 1



J - 2 - 2



J - 2 - 3



J - 2 - 4



J - 2 - 5



J - 2 - 6



J - 2 - 7



J - 2 - 8



J - 2 - 9



J - 2 - 10



J - 2 - 11



J - 2 - 12



J - 2 - 13



J - 2 - 14



J - 2 - 15



J - 2 - 16



 
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

MEETING DATE: August 12, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Position Reclassification 
 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? : Yes 
 
 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
 

Due to budget constraints, a crew leader position within the Parks Maintenance Division was put on 
hold after the retirement of Mr. Stanley Sheared in 2016, and has not been filled since that time, thus 
leaving a void in leadership and technical expertise in areas of the operation.   

 
In my assessment of the Parks Maintenance Division staffing, it is very apparent to me that the 
division is bottom heavy and lacks the number of employees who have the necessary knowledge, 
skills and abilities to perform the more detailed and technical work that is required.  Currently Mike 
Warmbold is the only Crew Leader in the Parks Maintenance Division and although he has the 
knowledge, skills and abilities to perform the more detailed and technical work, he is the only one on 
staff that has these traits.  As such, Mr. Warmbold has been addressing the immediate needs (fires) 
as they come up, but is not able to fully address or take a proactive approach to all of the needs. 
Although some steps have been taken to train other staff, they are not at the level needed and this 
creates an issue when Mr. Warmbold is on vacation or is out sick etc. 

 
With the recent announcement that Mr. Derek Lambert, Park Maintenance – Heavy Equipment 
Operator is retiring and will be leaving the employment of the City on July 31, 2019, there will be a 
maintenance position open within the Parks Maintenance Division. Therefore, I would like to explore 
the possibility of the Heavy Equipment Operator position be upgraded to the level of a Crew Leader 
position.  Mr. Lambert is currently at a Grade 8-F and is making $23.28/hr. and an entry level Crew 
Leader position would be at a Grade 10-A at an hourly rate of $22.88/hr. 

 
This potential move will not solve all of our needs or challenges, however, if approved, it 
would at least get us moving in the right direction and would give us the ability to better 
address our current needs.   

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The City Manager recommends approval. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Parks Crew Leader Job Description 
 

J - 3 - 1



City of University City, MO 

Parks Crew Leader 8.19 1 

TITLE: Parks Crew Leader 
FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

JOB PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this position is to oversee construction, maintenance and repair of City parks, 
facilities, trails, and other city-owned properties. Responsibilities include planning and 
administering construction and maintenance, managing operations, ensuring safety, developing 
and complying with standards and conducting and documenting inspections. The Parks Crew 
Leader is a working position that is responsible for completing a variety of tasks relating to 
construction and maintenance with the goal of maintaining and improving the city’s parks, 
facilities, trails and other city-owned properties. The Crew Leader ensures that efforts adhere to 
city ordinance, codes, policies, and national standards; and works under the direction of the 
Parks Maintenance Superintendent. 

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
● Supervises park maintenance personnel as assigned.
● Supervises the training and use of equipment and tools.
● Reviews, plans and inspects maintenance, construction and contract projects.
● Reviews, plans and inspects day-to-day work assignments.
● Oversees mechanical and chemical operations of pools/spray grounds.
● Prepares written and oral reports to superior(s).
● Assists with performance evaluations and makes recommendations regarding

personnel matters.
● Performs other duties as required.

QUALIFICATIONS: 
● Graduation from high school or equivalent.
● Between three and five years of directly related experience in municipal park and

recreation maintenance and operations. Previous supervisory experience preferred.
● Must be able to read and write in English.
● Intermediate experience/skills - operating light and heavy equipment.
● Intermediate experience/skills - plumbing, electrical, carpentry.
● Intermediate experience/skills - horticulture and forestry.
● Intermediate experience/skills - irrigation.
● Intermediate experience/skills - athletic field and turf maintenance.
● Intermediate reading skills – high school level.
● Intermediate math skills – high school level.
● Intermediate writing skills – high school level.
● Advanced experience/skills – pool/aquatic operations.
● Class “B” Commercial Driver’s License.

J - 3 - 2

Yolanda Howze
Let’s talk about this



City of University City, MO 

 
  

 

Parks Crew Leader 8.19  2 
 

● Certified Pool Operator or Aquatic Facility Operator certification within six (6) months. 
● Certified Playground Safety Inspector within one (1) year. 
● Missouri Pesticide License within one (1) year. 
● CPR/AED Certification within one (1) year. 
● Excellent interpersonal and communication skills. 
● Excellent organization skills. 

Performs other duties as assigned. 

Responsible for following all prescribed safety rules and regulations; and utilizing and wearing 
appropriate safety gear. 

Follows and upholds City and departmental rules, regulations, policies and procedures. 

Reports to work free from the effects of drugs/controlled substances and/or alcohol, and free 
from impairment due to prescription drugs. 

Maintains regular attendance. 

The City reserves the right to require an employee in this position to work overtime including 
during emergency situations (defined as any natural or man-made disaster that may or may not 
necessitate the relocation of City personnel or citizens).  In the event of an emergency and/or a 
required evacuation, the incumbent may be required to remain at work to provide needed 
services or perform essential duties for the benefit of the general public including services or 
duties different from those performed in the normal course and scope of the position. 
 

OVERALL PHYSICAL STRENGTH DEMANDS: 
 

-Physical strength for this position is indicated below with “X”- 
Sedentary    Light  Medium   Heavy    Very Heavy  X  

Exerting up to 10 lbs. 
occasionally or negligible 

weights frequently; 
sitting most of the time. 

Exerting up to 20 lbs. 
occasionally, 10 lbs. 

frequently, or negligible 
amounts regularly OR 

requires walking or standing 
to a significant degree. 

Exerting 20-50 lbs. 
occasionally, 10-25 lbs. 
frequently, or up to 10 

lbs. regularly. 

Exerting 50-100 lbs. 
occasionally, 10-25 lbs. 

frequently, or up to 10-20 
lbs. regularly. 

Exerting over 100 lbs. 
occasionally, 50-100 lbs. 
frequently, or up to 20-50 

lbs. regularly. 

WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 

C 
Regularly 

Over 70% 

F 
Frequently 

41% to 70% 

O 
Occasionally 

16% to 40% 

R 
Rarely 
Up to 15% 

N 
Never 

0% 

 
-Physical Demand- -Frequency- 

Sitting R 
Talking F 

J - 3 - 3

Yolanda Howze
Let’s talk about this



City of University City, MO 

 
  

 

Parks Crew Leader 8.19  3 
 

Hearing F 
Feeling attributes of objects (e.g., determining size, shape, temperature, or texture by 

touching with fingertips) 
F 

Grasping F 
Pushing F 

Standing F 
Walking F 
Driving F 

Reaching with hands/arms F 
Stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling F 

Climbing or balancing F 
Repetitive wrist, and or finger movement F 

Moving up and down from/to sitting position on the floor O 
Physical support and care of children (e.g. diapering, feeding, positioning, etc.) N 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS: 
 

C 
Regularly 

Over 70% 

F 
Frequently 

41% to 70% 

O 
Occasionally 

16% to 40% 

R 
Rarely 
Up to 15% 

N 
Never 

0% 

 
-Environmental Condition- -Frequency- 

Work in confined spaces (crawl spaces, shafts, pipelines) F 
Wet, humid conditions (non-weather) F 

Varying, inclement outdoor weather conditions F 
Vibration F 

Work in hazardous traffic conditions (does not include regular traffic commute) F 
Extreme cold (non-weather; 1 hour) F 

Extreme heat (non-weather; >100 deg. F for > 1 hour) F 
Subject to oils (mechanical or food) F 

Required to wear a respirator R 
Fumes or airborne particles O 

Work near moving mechanical parts F 
Work in high, dangerous places R 

Risk of electrical shock O 
Potentially hazardous bodily fluids N 

Potentially hazardous or cancer-causing agents or chemicals O 
 

J - 3 - 4



City of University City, MO 

 
  

 

Parks Crew Leader 8.19  4 
 

VISUAL ACTIVITIES: 
-Activity- -Usually Required- 

Clarity of vision at 20 feet or more. Yes 
Clarity of vision at 20 inches or less. Yes 

Three-dimensional vision- ability to judge distance and space 
relationships. Yes 

Precise hand-eye coordination. Yes 
Ability to identify and distinguish colors. Yes 

NOISE EXPOSURE: 
-Level- -Indicator- 

Very quiet  
Quiet  

Moderate noises (i.e., an office with conversations, photocopiers, 
and/or computer printers.) X 

Loud noise X 
Very loud noise X 

 
Description of loud or very loud noise: 
Equipment, Pumps, Motors. 
 

J - 3 - 5



City of University City, MO 

 
  

 

Parks Crew Leader 8.19  5 
 

SIGNATURE – REVIEW AND COMMENTS: 
 

I have reviewed this description and understand the requirements and responsibilities of the 
position. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Signature of Employee 

________________________ 
Date 

 
 
 

________________________ 
Job Title of Supervisor 

 
 

________________________ 
Signature of Supervisor 

________________________ 
Date 

 
 
 

________________________ 
Job Title of Department Head 

________________________ 
Signature of Department Head 

________________________ 
Date 

 
 
Comments: ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being 
performed by individuals assigned to this position.  They are not intended to be an exhaustive list 
of all responsibilities, duties, and skills required.  This description is subject to modification as 
the needs and requirements of the position change. 
 

J - 3 - 6



Council Agenda Item Cover

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019        

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Ackert Walkway Improvements – Transportation Alternatives Program 

AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    
The City of University City applied for federal funds through the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission and administered by East West Gateway Council of Governments and 
the Missouri Department of Transportation for improvements to Ackert Walkway.  City Council has 
approved budgeting for this project and the design is completed. 

The improvements include upgrading the inefficient and inadequate lighting along the path and 
providing ADA accessibility to and from the Leland Avenue and Westgate Avenue adjacent to Ackert 
Park. Detailed signage is also proposed, including wayfinding, directional, and bike route signs.  The 
lighting upgrades additionally increase the city’s energy efficiency resulting in cost savings. 

This project was advertised on June 1, 2019 in the St. Louis Post Dispatch, Drexel Technologies 
website, and on the Missouri Department of Transportation’s website. On June 21, 2019 at 10:00am, 
the City received and opened two (2) bids for this project.  .  The lowest bid was submitted by Raineri 
Construction, LLC in the amount of $304,555.62 and the other bid was submitted by Gershenson 
Construction Co. in the amount of $359,220.00. All bidders were determined to be responsible. 

Company Bid Amount 
Raineri Construction, LLC $      304,555.62 
Gershenson Construction Co. $      359,220.00 

80% of the project is funded (reimbursable) by a grant administered by East-West Gateway Council 
of Governments in the amount of $243,644.50, with the City covering the remaining balance.  The 
City is responsible for $60,911.12 for the construction portion of this project. The City share portion 
will come from Ackert Walkway funds paid to University City in April of 2018.  Grant expenditures and 
reimbursements will be intermittent throughout the grant with a maximum of $100,000 floating.  

The Disadvantage Business Enterprise participation requirement for this project is twelve percent 
(12%).  The low bidder firm committed to achieve 12% and has been approved by MoDOT’s External 
Civil Rights.   

RECOMMENDATION: 
The City Manager recommends that the contract be awarded to Raineri Construction, LLC. The 
firm is the lowest responsible bidder and has been approved by MoDOT.    

J - 4 - 1



J - 4 - 2



              
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  August 6, 2019                                         
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Fogerty Park Phase II Improvements 
        
AGENDA SECTION:   Consent 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    No  
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:    
 
Fogerty Park Phase II Improvements include the construction and/or installation of a splash playground, 
concrete sidewalks, asphalt trail, lighting, general site grading, drainage and installation of landscape. 
 
This project was advertised on June 3, 2019 in the St. Louis American, Drexel Technologies, and the City 
website. On June 21, 2019 at 10:00AM, the City received and opened one (1) bid for this project. Although 
another contractor attended the pre-bid meeting, only one bid was submitted by Ideal Landscape 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $477,845.00, which was over the grant allotment. Subsequent value 
engineering reduced the bid amount to $457,565.00. 
 

Company Bid Amount 
Ideal Landscape Construction, Inc. $457,565.00 

 
This Project is funded by a grant administered by the Municipal Park Grant Commission with a grant 
contribution of $525,000.00 and the City’s contribution of $3,383.00 proposed to be expended from the 
Fiscal Year 2019.  The total budget for the project is broken down as follows: 
 

 Amount 
Municipal Park Grant Commission $525,000.00 
City $3,383.00 
Design  ($68,900.00) 
Construction ($457,565.00) 
Balance $1,918.00 

 
This project is pursuant to the Fogerty Park Master Plan developed by staff and citizen feedback, Park 
Commission reviews and recommendations and approval by City Council. The work will include: 

1. New Splash Playground. 
2. Asphalt Trail. 
3. New Lighting. 
4. New Landscaping 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is the recommendation of the City Manager that Ideal Landscape Construction, Inc. be awarded the 
Fogerty Park Phase II Improvements contract as the lowest and responsible bidder for their bid of 
$457,565.00 

J - 5 - 1



CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the ______ day of _________________, 20___, by and  
between The City of University City, MISSOURI (here in after called the CITY) and Ideal 
Landscape Construction, Inc., a Corporation with offices at 6252 Olsen Road, St. Louis, 
Missouri 63129 (herein after called the CONTRACTOR), WITNESSETH, that whereas the CITY 
intends to proceed with Project No. 1401 Contract hereinafter called the PROJECT, in 
accordance with the Specifications and Contract Documents prepared by the City of University 
City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The CITY and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter set forth, 
agree as follows: 

THE CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all the necessary labor, materials, equipment, tools 
and services necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all work required for 
the PROJECT, in strict compliance with the Contract Documents herein mentioned, which are 
hereby made a part of the Contract. 

a. Contract Time:  Work under this Agreement shall be commenced upon written Notice to
Proceed, and shall be completed within one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days of the
authorization date in the Notice to Proceed.

b. Liquidated Damages: The Contractor hereby expressly agrees to pay the City the sum of
two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day for each and every day, Sundays and legal holidays
only excepted, after calendar days have expired during or upon which said work or any part
thereof remains incomplete and unfinished.

c. Subcontractors: The Contractor agrees to bind every subcontractor by the terms of the
Contract Documents. The Contract Documents shall not be construed as creating any
contractual relation between any subcontractor and the City.  No subcontractor shall further
subcontract any of their work.

THE CITY AGREES to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept, in full payment for the 
performance of this Contract, the amount as stipulated in the Proposal, which is: 

Four Hundred Fifty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred Sixty-Five dollars and no cents 
($457,565.00)   

Final dollar amount will be computed from actual quantities constructed as verified by the City 
and in accordance with the unit prices set out in the Proposal. 

(See following pages) 

J - 5 - 2



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
The Contract comprises the Contract Documents as bound herein.  In the event that any 
provision of one Contract Document conflicts with the provision of another Contract Document, 
the provision in that Contract Document first listed below shall govern, except as otherwise 
specifically stated: 
 

A. Contract (This Instrument) 
 

B. Addenda to Contract Documents 
 

C. Conditions of the Contract 
 

D. Remaining Legal and Procedural Documents 
 
1. Proposal 
2. Instruction to Bidders 
3. Invitation for Bids 

 
E. Job Special Provisions 

 
F. Annual Wage Order 

 
G. Bonds/Attachments 

 
1. Performance/Payment Bond 
2. Bid Bond 

 
 

AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CITY: 
 
All work shall be done under the general inspection of the City.  The City or their designated 
representative shall decide any and all questions which may arise as to the quality and 
acceptability of materials furnished, work performed, and rate of progress of work, 
interpretations of specifications and all questions as to the acceptable fulfillment of the Contract 
on the part of the Contractor. 
 
 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: 
 
This Agreement and all of the covenants hereof shall insure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the City and Contractor respectively and their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives.  Neither the Owner nor the Contractor shall have the right to assign, transfer, or 
sublet their interests or obligation hereunder without consent of the other party. 
 
*In making out this form the title that is not applicable should be struck out. For example, 
if the Contractor is a corporation and this form is to be executed by its president, the 
words "Sole owner, a partner, secretary, etc." should be struck out. 
 
The Contract contains a binding arbitration provision that may be enforced by the parties. 
 

J - 5 - 3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
Title: _______________________________________________________________ 
  
By (signature): _______________________________________________________  
 
Contractor (print): ______________________________________________________ 
 
Date: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By: _____________________________             
                   City Clerk 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Date: __________________________                                                     
 
 
         
 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY              CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________   By: ____________________________                                                                                                                                                          
                   City Attorney      City Manager 
 
Date: __________________________   Date: __________________________ 
                                                        

J - 5 - 4



 
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE   August 12, 2019         
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: MS Office 365 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:     
 
The City would like to migrate from an internally hosted email environment to a cloud 
hosted solution provided by Microsoft. Office 365 is a robust suite of tools that includes 
email, MS Office, Skype for Business, SharePoint and OneDrive. Requesting the 
reallocation of funds from FY19 that were to be used for the internal Exchange and MS 
Office Suite upgrade. The annual cost for the 3 year Enterprise Agreement would be 
$35,000. Which was budgeted for and will be carried over from FY19.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The City Manager recommends that City Council approve the 3-year contract to authorize 
the purchase of Microsoft Office 365 for all employees. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 
1. Microsoft Office 365 Plan 

 
2. Employee License Breakdown 

J - 6 - 1



J - 6 - 2



Microsoft Office 365 Plan 

The City’s current email environment consists of Microsoft Exchange 2010 that resides on a 
Virtual MS Server 2008 R2 platform. Both Exchange and the OS are set to end of life in early 2020. SPAM 
is managed by the cloud based application Barracuda Email Essentials. We are limited by the features of 
Exchange 2010 and also hosting email internally. Part of the problem is with email size and also mailbox 
size. While we have been able to adjust those to better handle our more email intensive environment 
we are still hampered by the age of the system. The next major issue is having to archive email directly 
to an individual’s Hard Drive which is not directly backed up. 

In Fiscal Year 2019 we budgeted for the upgrade of both MS Office Suite and Exchange. For 
Office I requested 45K and Exchange is set for 30K. My request is that those funds be reallocated to 
begin the process of moving towards Office 365 in FY19 with the remaining funds going to new 
computers. 

There are many benefits to making the switch to Office 365 and we would be utilizing two types 
of licenses. For employees with a computer we would assign a G3 license and Full-Time field staff would 
use a G1 license. 

License Features: 

G1 –  

• Web versions of Word, Excel, PowerPoint, SharePoint, and Teams 
• File Storage and sharing with 1 TB OneDrive per user 
• Business email, calendar, and contacts with a 50 GB mailbox 
• Skype for Business 

G3 – 

• Desktop versions of Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook, Publisher and Access 
• OneNote access 
• Web versions as above 
• Unlimited Cloud Storage 
• Business email, calendar, and contacts with 100 GB mailbox 
• Skype for Business 
• SharePoint and Teams 
• Compliance and legal hold 

There are two options for the licensing of Office 365. One is the Enterprise agreement which 
“locks” in our pricing for 3 years, and the other is on Microsoft’s MPSA (Microsoft Products and 
Services Agreement) plan which would be an annual renewal. Both licensing options are on the 
Government plan and both are hosted on U.S. based servers which meets with CJIS 
requirements. The consultant I am working with has said that he has seen roughly a 3% to 5% 
increase annually; where some years there is no increase and some it may be as high as 8%. The 
Enterprise agreement includes software assurance which allows us to utilize continues updates 
instead of annual as the MPSA would offer. With the Enterprise Agreement we would be locking 
in our rate over the course of 3 years. With the True-Up program we would be able to freely 

J - 6 - 3



adjust our license requirements over the year as needed and then adjust them at renewal. The 
Enterprise agreement would also unlock access to Microsoft’s Home Use Program which would 
allow for discounted pricing on MS products for Employees.  

Cost Breakdown – 

Enterprise Qty Price Total 
G1 169 $81.56 $13,783.64 
G3 93 $224.20 $20,850.60 
    
  Annual Total $34,634.24 
  3 Year Total $103,902.72 
 

MPSA Qty Price Total 
G1 169 $88.13 $14,893.97 
G3 93 $220.32 $20,489.76 
    
  Total Year 1 $35,383.73 
  Year 2 with 5% $37,152.92 
  Year 3 with 5% $39,010.56 
  3 Year Total $111,547.21 
*Licensing costs provided by SHI which is both the State Contract holder and the City’s Microsoft 
Licensing Authority 

On-Premise Exchange Cost Breakdown: 

Exchange Server License - $1,000 

Server License - $2,500 

Exchange User CAL’s - $36,000 

Office Suite Update - $73,000 

Consultant fees for initial deployment are estimated at $7,500. Chosen consultant has been 
used by other local municipalities for their migrations. 

We would begin the process by utilizing the Hybrid Deployment option provided by Microsoft. 
With the O365 licensing we are also able to use a free option of MS Exchange on a small Virtual 
Server. This will allow for a staged migration of users between our on-site deployment and the 
cloud solution. Once the environment was configured, we would begin migrating users starting 
with a test group and work closely with them to determine issues before moving forward. We 
would also setup employees who don’t currently have email with a mailbox.  

 

 

J - 6 - 4



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Leaf Collection Contract 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED:?      Yes 

BACKGROUND:  The City of University City participates in a program of natural recycling 
each fall and spring by carrying out leaf collection.  Leaves are gathered from the property 
by residents, brought to the curb line, and then picked up by mechanized street sweepers 
and specialized trucks fitted with a vacuum apparatus.  They are transported to the Ruth 
Park Recycling Area where they are transferred and processed into a fine mulch product 
and made available to University City residents through St. Louis Composting Inc. for their 
gardening and lawn care needs.   

During the period when the leaves fall at its heaviest, in order to maintain the collection 
schedule, it is necessary to employ a contractor to supplement the Street Division crews in 
completing the task.  The contractors are required to provide up to date equipment and be 
available during extended hours and inclement weather conditions. 

The City sought bids from contractors for leaf collection services and on September 11, 
2018, the City opened bids for the contractual leaf collection services.  The contractors’ 
submitted hourly rates for a three year period; fall 2018 was the first year of the contract 
and fall 2020 will be the third and last year for this contract.  The tabulation of the bid 
proposals for the second year is as follows: 

Contractor Bid Hourly Rate 
Hendel Lawn Care Inc. $165.00 
T.G. Williams $244.25 

The City budgeted $75,000.00 for the leaf collection service contract for FY20. 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Manager recommends approval of the award for the leaf 
collection services to Hendel Lawn Care Inc. in the amount of $165.00 an hour.  An 
estimated 350 hours or $57,750 is planned for this work. 

J - 7 - 1



J - 7 - 2



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Project 1429 - Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      YES 

BACKGROUND:  Every two years, the City inspects all streets for deficiencies and rates 
them based on severity of deterioration/damage.  By documenting the actual conditions of 
the pavement, the City is able to develop a maintenance budget, make timely repairs and 
use cost-effective maintenance procedures. 

The City replaces sidewalks that are extensively cracked, failed, does not meet certain 
ADA requirements, faulted, and/or possesses a trip hazard. Curbs are replaced when 
severe enough to disrupt drainage or when deteriorated and adjacent to street pavement 
that is being resurfaced. 

On July 15, 2019, the City opened bids for the Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project.  
The tabulation of bid proposals is as follows: 

Contractor Base Bid Price 
Pride Master $386,185.73 
Raineri Construction $440,519.25 
Gershenson Contracting $471,008.85 
Pavement Solutions $598,267.01 

The lowest bidder Pride Master has worked on the previous sidewalk and curb project with 
satisfactory performance and ability to be flexible with the City’s requests.  

The capital improvement program budget for sidewalk replacement is $500,000.00.  In an 
effort to get ahead of the sidewalk replacement work included in our 5 year street work 
plan, an amended contract award amount of $450,000.00 would enable the contract to 
cover the additional sidewalk, curb, and ADA work on the additional work locations listed. 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Manager recommends approval of an amended contract 
award for the Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project to Pride Master Inc. in the amount 
of $450,000.00. 

ATTACHMENT:  Project locations list 
J - 8 - 1



  
 

 
 

 
ORIGINAL BID WORK LOCATIONS 

 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADDITIONAL WORK LOCATIONS PER STREET WORK PLAN 
 

Street Name From To 
Balson Ave Gay Swarthmore 
Balson Ave Swarthmore Old Bonhomme 
Wayne Ave North & South 78th St 
Milan Ave North & South Lyndale 
Milan Ave 78th St Annandale 
Milan Ave 79th St Mendell 
Lyndale Ct Milan Wayne 
Lyndale Ct Wayne  Cul de sac 
78th St Milan dead end 
78th St Wayne  Cul de sac 
Annandale Dr Milan Trenton 
Trenton Ave 78th St Annandale 
Trenton Ave Annandale Erith 
Erith Pl Milan Trenton 
Birchmont Dr East leg at 

Milan 
Turn to north 

79th St Wayne Milan 
Mendell Dr Canton Cul de sac 
Elmore Ave Woodson Sheridan 
Elmore Ave Sheridan Coolidge 
Elmore Ave Coolidge Grant 
Richard Ave Woodson Sheridan 
Richard Ave Sheridan Coolidge 
Richard Ave Coolidge Grant 
Orchard Ave Woodson Sheridan 

Coolidge Dr Kempland Appleton 

Coolidge Dr Archer Orchard 

Coolidge Dr Richard Elmore 

Coolidge Dr Elmore Olive 

Eastgate Ave Vernon Cates 

Eastgate Ave Cates Clemens 

Eastgate Ave Clemens City limit 

Jackson Ave Delmar Cornell 

J - 8 - 2



Council Agenda Item Cover

MEETING DATE: August 12, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Inspector Vehicles 

AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:   
The City of University City Department of Planning and Development utilizes a code enforcement 
housing division that requires the inspectors to be in the field and drive to various locations for 
inspections and to address code violations.  Each inspector utilizes their own vehicle for these 
inspections and averages 500 miles per month. Currently, University City reimburses these inspectors for 
the mileage they incur throughout their workday resulting in the City paying approximately $16,000 per 
year toward mileage to reimburse the housing inspectors. The purchase of City-owned vehicles, as 
opposed to inspectors using their own, is estimated to provide a cost benefit to the City in approximately 6 
years. 

An analysis of initial and long term costs was completed comparing estimated costs of gasoline, hybrid, and 
electric powered vehicles.  Maintenance, repairs, electricity and fuel costs were estimated for each vehicle. 
This estimated cost comparison indicated that the purchase of electric vehicles versus gasoline or hybrid was 
the best option over time.    

A Request for Quotes was sent to five different vendors and posted on the University City website. The 
Request for Quotes included an alternate line item for the purchase of charging stations. The purchase of 
the charging stations was not included in the budget amount of $100,000 toward the purchase of the vehicles. 
Five quotes were received as follows: 
Vendor Vehicle Type Price (each) Total Price Chargers 

Included 
Payment Method 

St. Charles 
Nissan 

Nissan Leaf S $22,700.00 $113,500.00 Yes Lease Option to buy. Buyout 30 
days from lease conception 

Suntrup Nissan Nissan Leaf S $24,469.00 $122,346.00 Yes Lease Option to buy. Buyout 30 
days from lease conception 

Bommarito 
Nissan Ballwin 

Nissan Leaf S $25,995.00 129,975.00 No Cash Payment 

National Auto 
Fleet Group 

Nissan Leaf S $27,626.14 $138,130.70 Yes Cash Payment 

Bommarito 
Nissan 
Hazelwood 

Nissan Leaf S $27,800.00 $139,000.00 No Cash Payment 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The City Manager recommends purchasing 5 Nissan Leaf Vehicles from St. Charles Nissan which 
includes charging stations for each of the vehicles.  For the most economical option, he recommends a lease 
to purchase option in order to take full advantage of the federal incentives.  As a result, the City Manager 
is requesting to accept the bid of $113,500 and execute a contract with St. Charles Nissan as an initial lease 
with a buyout option after 30 days.  

ATTACHMENTS:  Proposals 

J - 9 - 1



Bommarito Nissan West

J - 9 - 2



OPTIONAL PRODUCT ENHANCEMENTS: 

OPTION $ EACH $TOTAL 

1. $ $ 

2. $ $ 

3. $ $ 

4. $ $ 

NameofB1,�,\-l
r:

�r--
✓-/_I_�� le_ £0\IV\W\?tn-t� N�ssc,"" W,

Signed: ---'(}J�-=-���L._ ______ Date: ���-/-1.-___ _ 
Printed Name: {)//(r!if1 � ke_
Title: W\ V\Aen:\°' \ �h,'c]e. JA011A · c...,r

Address: /L/1L/7- �111cltes+� 'l_J, ""\(��-\�/ �A"t> 
Email: w--1--es ke_@ bo\'\\MOi r'.-6. ""'+

b�Ol 1 

Page 8 of 9 

Bommarito Nissan West

J - 9 - 3



Bommarito Nissan Hazelwood

J - 9 - 4



Bommarito Nissan Hazelwood

J - 9 - 5



Sourcewell

J - 9 - 6



21/2013 23:31 5354415527 ST CHARLES NISSANPHS 

City of University City 

PROPOSAL FORM 

PAGE 07/09 

The undersigned hereby declares that they have carefully examined any instructions to 
bidders and requirements of the specifications contained herein, and propose to furnish 
and delver to the City of University City the Refuse Collection Vehicle listed below. 

Five (5) New and Unused Electric Vehicles and alternate items as specified. 

BODY MAKE: _N�,_· E,_SC\_ ...... _____ MODEL: --l_t�A�F ___ _

PURCHSE PRICE: (EACH @) 

PURCHASE PRICE TOTAL $_1_l _3
-r

S_o_o_.v_<• ----

TOTAL PRICE IN WORDS: °",.J,\VJ_v-Jri'.,,rb_.,�ov�,,_"i +;v.,_ kv•-J""'-A_,

DESCRIBE PAYMENT METHOD PROPOSED IF OTHER THAN. PURCHASING 

VEHICLES.· 

OUTRIGHT: L-e.a.s<e... or+;o .... fD bLj'f 0 

'13v1ov+ ?,o k'f s R,..... l �Ct� Ii,_ U:,•� ( ,c e�-.

QUOTE IS VALID FOR:-------�--------' 

Optional cable management solution 
(6) 
Optional access restriction options (6) 

1 portable charge cable (120 V /240 V) 
to be shared by all 6 vehicles 

\ 
' 

Page 7 of 9 

St. Charles Nissan

J - 9 - 7



St. Charles Nissan

J - 9 - 8



Suntrup Nissan

J - 9 - 9



Suntrup Nissan

J - 9 - 10



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:   August 12, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: EMS Ambulance and Equipment Purchases 

AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda  

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    No 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

EMS was outsourced in September 2015. At the time of outsourcing, existing Ambulances, which 
were already slated for replacement, were stored outside at the City Garage.  Upon the Council’s 
approval to reinstate EMS to the Fire Department, fire department personnel, city garage personnel 
and vendors, evaluated the existing ambulances and recommended to the Council that one existing 
unit be re-mounted to a new cab and a new ambulance be built to provide EMS services to the City.  
The Council approved Resolution 2018-15 (FY19 Budget Amendment #1) to appropriate funds in 
the amount of $250,000.  This amount went towards the purchase of 2 Freightliner M2 Chassis, 
Ambulance Remount Upgrades, and 2 Cardiac Monitors equipment.     

The above purchases were made through the HGACBuy (Houston-Galveston Area Council) 
Cooperative, a government procurement service.    

$166,314.00 - Emergency Services Supply – 2 Freightliner M2 Chassis  
$5,511.03 - Emergency Services Supply - Remount upgrades 
$78,385.32 - Zoll Medical Corporation – 2 new Cardiac Monitors and equipment 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Manager recommends that the City Council ratifies the payments towards the above 
purchases.   

ATTACHMENTS: 

- Invoices from Emergency Services Supply (Osage Ambulance)
- Invoice from Zoll Medical
- Cancelled checks from Emergency Services Supply and Zoll Medical Corporation
- Resolution 2018-15

J - 10 - 1



J - 10 - 2



J - 10 - 3



J - 10 - 4



J - 10 - 5



J - 10 - 6



J - 10 - 7



J - 10 - 8



J - 10 - 9



J - 10 - 10



J - 10 - 11



J - 10 - 12



  
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:   August 12, 2019 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: EMS Ambulance Remount Purchase  
 
AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    No 
 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:     
 
EMS was outsourced in September 2015. At the time of outsourcing, existing Ambulances, which 
were already slated for replacement, were stored outside at the City Garage.  Upon the Council’s 
approval to reinstate EMS to the Fire Department, fire department personnel, city garage personnel 
and vendors, evaluated the existing ambulances and recommended to the Council that one existing 
unit be re-mounted to a new cab and a new ambulance be built to provide EMS services to the City.   
 
The Fire Department has requested that one of the existing unit be re-mounted to a new chassis.      
 
The Fire Department has been working with HGACBuy (Houston-Galveston Area Council) 
Cooperative, a government procurement service.      
 
In order for the EMS (Fire Department) to provide adequate transportation to transport the City’s 
residents and surrounding neighbors, the need to re-mount one of the existing units to a new 
chassis is pertinent.  The purchase of the re-mount has been included in the FY2020 budget as part 
of the CIP program.  The cost of the re-mount is $55,388.97 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The City Manager recommends that the City Council approves the purchase of the re-mount in the 
amount of $55,388.97 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

- Invoice from Emergency Services Supply (Osage Ambulance) 
 

J - 11 - 1



J - 11 - 2



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE: August 12, 2019        

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Conditional Use Permit Extension Request - Construction of 
a new building at 6901 Delmar Blvd and allowing for increased 
building height and a “church office” use within a PA - Public 
Activity District. 

AGENDA SECTION:   Consent Agenda  

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:     

During their September 24, 2018 regular City Council meeting the City Council approved 
a Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P) request approving a “Church Office” at the property 
commonly known as 6901 Delmar Blvd. Specifically, the City Council approved C.U.P. # 
05665 relating to the Church of Scientology’s request to establish a “Church Office” within 
the Public Activity (PA) zoning district as required per Section 400.690 of the University 
City Zoning Code. Furthermore, the C.U.P granted an exception to the height provisions 
allowing for an additional height of 10 feet above the maximum 35 foot height limitation 
per the provisions of 400.700, Subsection C(1) of the aforementioned zoning code. Staff 
has attached the C.U.P. correspondence letter identifying approval of the C.U.P. and the 
specific “conditions of use” associated with the permit. 

Per their letter dated August 3, 2019, the Church of Scientology and their Program 
Manager have submitted a formal request for an extension of the C.U.P. They have 
officially made this request because the due diligence and pre development process has 
resulted in delays preventing them from obtaining the necessary permits or starting 
construction of the project within the required 12 month time frame per Section 400.2760 
(Failure to Commence Construction or Operation) of the zoning code and referenced 
below; 

Section 400.2760Failure To Commence Construction or Operation. 
[R.O. 2011 §34-133.3; Ord. No. 6139 §1(Exh. A (part)), 1997] 

Unless otherwise stated in the conditions of a particular conditional use permit, substantial 
construction work or operation of the conditional use (where construction is not involved) 
shall commence within one (1) year of the effective date of the permit unless such time 
period is extended by the Council. If no extension of time is granted, the permit shall 
immediately terminate upon expiration of the one (1) year period. 

J - 12 - 1



 
In summary, the Church of Scientology is formally requesting that City Council grant a 2 
year extension to their original C.U.P with no changes or amendments. Staff has no 
objection to the request and see no detrimental impacts by granting the extension. 
 
Attachments: 

1. C.U.P. Permit #05665  
2. Request of Extension Letter 
3. Project Schedule 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Manager recommends approval. 
 
 

 

J - 12 - 2



J - 12 - 3



500 South Figueroa Tel 213.327.3600 

Los Angeles CA 90071 Fax 213.327.3601 

USA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

August 03, 2019 
 
Clifford Cross 
Planning and Zoning Administrator 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, Missouri 63130 
 
 
Subject: Church of Scientology, 6901 Delmar Boulevard   
 Request for Extension—Conditional Use Permit 

05665 
  

    
    
Dear Mr. Cross, 
 
This is regarding the upcoming Church of Scientology project on 6901 Delmar Blvd. On 
September 24, 2018, the project was granted Conditional Use Permit after a detailed review 
and planning process. This CUP states it will expire on September 25, 2019, unless all 
necessary permits are obtained and work is commenced. Currently, we do not anticipate 
being ready to start construction by September 2019 for the reasons outlined below. On 
behalf of our client, we are requesting an extension of the CUP by an additional two years.  
 
After receiving approval on CUP in September 2018, a team of architects and engineers was 
assembled to initiate the due diligence on the project. First, detailed conceptual interior 
designs were created. Then, in February 2019, a project team completed a comprehensive 
site investigation process. The team consisted of architects, project managers, potential 
contractors, and mechanical, electrical, plumbing, civil, and structural engineers. The 
objective of this process was to verify existing site conditions and articulate engineering 
strategies for the project. Based on this due diligence the team was able to create a rough 
estimate budget and project schedule.  
 
Based on this schedule, we will require substantial time to develop drawings, secure permits, 
and select contractors prior to commencement of construction. Additionally, our detailed 
investigation and planning process revealed that the current budget is higher than 
anticipated. We are now engaged in a value engineering process in order to reduce costs 
without changing the exterior design, property use or basic floor plans. 
 
Specifics are given below.  
 
Development of Drawings 

J - 12 - 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Page  2 
 

 

Our project involves the restoration of the historic masonic temple and an adjacent ground-
up building. We need to pay enormous attention in developing details and formulating 
engineering solutions that will allow us to use the building for modern use while keeping its 
historic integrity. This adds significant time in developing the drawings for this project to 
ensure that we are doing it correctly and conscientiously.  
 
Permit Approvals 
We anticipate that substantial time will be required in securing building permits for this 
project as drawings will require approval from building department and historic committee. 
Also, all utilities including water, power, and stormwater are required to be upgraded 
mandating coordination and approvals from utility companies.  

 
Project Budget Considerations 
Based on current space plans and design we received a rough order of magnitude estimate in 
July. This estimate is considerably higher than our anticipated costs and is currently over the 
project budget. Hence, we need to come up with creative value engineering solutions to 
meet our programmatic needs while maintaining our project budget considerations. This will 
require us to reevaluate proposed finishes, material choices and engineering solutions. 
 
Project Timeline  
We anticipate the following timeline on the project. Also, attached is a detailed project 
schedule for your reference. 
 

Task Name Duration Start Finish 

Approval of CUP 1 day Tue 9/25/18 Tue 9/25/18 

Project Initiation 85 days Mon 10/15/18 Fri 2/8/19 

Phase 0 Due Diligence 81 days Mon 2/11/19 Mon 6/3/19 

Project budget estimation 36 days Mon 6/10/19 Mon 7/29/19 

Value engineering strategies 30 days Mon 8/5/19 Fri 9/13/19 

Design revisons per value engineering 

strategies 
60 days Mon 9/23/19 Fri 12/13/19 

CSI Board approvals  46 days Mon 12/16/19 Mon 2/17/20 

Development of Drawings 230 days Mon 2/24/20 Fri 1/8/21 

Building Permits 76 days Mon 1/11/21 Mon 4/26/21 

Bidding 82 days Mon 5/3/21 Tue 8/24/21 

Contract Negotiation 30 days Mon 8/30/21 Fri 10/8/21 

Commencement of Construction 1 day Mon 10/11/21 Mon 10/11/21 

 

Conditions Granted in CUP 

J - 12 - 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Page  3 
 

 

We are not requesting any changes in the conditions granted in the CUP such as use, parking 
calculations, building height, square footage, exterior design, site plan, etc.  
 
We are requesting that all conditions granted in the CUP remain exactly the same, but an 
extension is granted on the length of time only. While we don’t expect it will take us the full 
two years to commence construction, it may be longer than a year and we want to be cautious 
in presenting a timeline. We have been taking a very methodical and meticulous approach in 
developing this project and want to ensure we have adequate time to continue this process. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Hetal Shah, AIA, LEED AP 
Program Manager 
Gensler Project Management Office 
 
 
cc: Daniel O’ Farrell, Matt Hanses/CSI 

Ted Hitch, Victoria Walsh/Gensler 
Pete Penfold, Chuck Downy/CPK 

 

J - 12 - 6



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Approval of CUP 1 day Tue 9/25/18 Tue 9/25/18

2 Project Initiation 85 days Mon 10/15/18 Fri 2/8/19

3  RFP for Project team 15 days Mon 10/15/18 Fri 11/2/18

4 Receipt of Proposals 30 days Mon 11/5/18 Fri 12/14/18

5 Processing  and issuance of Pos 40 days Mon 12/17/18 Fri 2/8/19

6  Phase 0 Due Diligence 81 days Mon 2/11/19 Mon 6/3/19

7  Site visit Coordination 10 days Mon 2/11/19 Fri 2/22/19

8 Site Visit 2 days Wed 2/27/19 Thu 2/28/19

9 Reconnaissance 15 days Fri 3/1/19 Thu 3/21/19

10 Executive summary 2 days Fri 3/22/19 Mon 3/25/19

11 Draft report to CSI 0 days Tue 3/26/19 Tue 3/26/19

12 CSI comments 10 days Tue 3/26/19 Mon 4/8/19

13 Preperation of final report 30 days Tue 4/9/19 Mon 5/20/19

14 Report review and presentation to CSI 10 days Tue 5/21/19 Mon 6/3/19

15 Project budget estimation 36 days Mon 6/10/19 Mon 7/29/19

16 Meetings with GC 15 days Mon 6/10/19 Fri 6/28/19

17 Budget preparation 10 days Mon 7/1/19 Fri 7/12/19

18 Budget reviews w/ project team 10 days Mon 7/15/19 Fri 7/26/19

19 Budget review with CSI 1 day Mon 7/29/19 Mon 7/29/19

20 Value engineering strategies 30 days Mon 8/5/19 Fri 9/13/19

21  Meetings with GCs 15 days Mon 8/5/19 Fri 8/23/19

22 Meetings with Project team 15 days Mon 8/26/19 Fri 9/13/19

23 Design revisions  per value engineering 

strategies

60 days Mon 9/23/19 Fri 12/13/19

24 Design revisons per VE 30 days Mon 9/23/19 Fri 11/1/19

25 Engineering solutions per VE 30 days Mon 11/4/19 Fri 12/13/19

26  CSI Board approvals 46 days Mon 12/16/19 Mon 2/17/20

27 Board reviews 30 days Mon 12/16/19 Fri 1/24/20

28 Corrections per board review 15 days Mon 1/27/20 Fri 2/14/20

29 Board approval Rcvd 1 day Mon 2/17/20 Mon 2/17/20

30  Development of Drawings 230 days Mon 2/24/20 Fri 1/8/21

31 Schematic Design 8 wks Mon 2/24/20 Fri 4/17/20

32 DID CSI review 1 wk Mon 4/20/20 Fri 4/24/20

33 Design development 10 wks Mon 4/27/20 Fri 7/3/20

34 Level 02 Budget Preperation 2 wks Mon 7/6/20 Fri 7/17/20

35 CSI review and approval 2 wks Mon 7/20/20 Fri 7/31/20

36  Revisons per CSI comments 2 wks Mon 8/3/20 Fri 8/14/20

37 Construction documents 13 wks Mon 8/17/20 Fri 11/13/20

38 Coordination w/ Consultants 2 wks Mon 11/16/20 Fri 11/27/20

39 Quality control and Peer review 3 wks Mon 11/30/20 Fri 12/18/20

40 Revisons per Peer review comments 3 wks Mon 12/21/20 Fri 1/8/21

41 Building Permits 76 days Mon 1/11/21 Mon 4/26/21

42 Application and coordination for Building permits1 wk Mon 1/11/21 Fri 1/15/21

43 Plan review (1st Round) 6 wks Mon 1/18/21 Fri 2/26/21

44 Plan check corrections (1st round) 2 wks Mon 3/1/21 Fri 3/12/21

45 Plan review (2nd Round) 4 wks Mon 3/15/21 Fri 4/9/21

46 Plan check corrections (2nd round) 2 wks Mon 4/12/21 Fri 4/23/21

47 Building Permit ready 1 day Mon 4/26/21 Mon 4/26/21

48 Bidding 82 days Mon 5/3/21 Tue 8/24/21

49 Invitation to bid 2 wks Mon 5/3/21 Fri 5/14/21

50 Pre-Bid meeting 1 day Mon 5/17/21 Mon 5/17/21

51 Sub walk thru 1 wk Tue 5/18/21 Mon 5/24/21

52 RFI's to Architects 1 wk Tue 5/25/21 Mon 5/31/21

53 Response back to GC 1 wk Tue 6/1/21 Mon 6/7/21

54 Bids Due 4 wks Tue 6/8/21 Mon 7/5/21

55 Bid Levelling 3 wks Tue 7/6/21 Mon 7/26/21

56 Final Project Budget Preperation 2 wks Tue 7/27/21 Mon 8/9/21

57 Presentation to CSI 1 day Tue 8/10/21 Tue 8/10/21

58 GC selection 2 wks Wed 8/11/21 Tue 8/24/21

59 Contract Negotiation 30 days Mon 8/30/21 Fri 10/8/21

60 Final Pricing 2 wks Mon 8/30/21 Fri 9/10/21

61 Budget Approval by CSI 2 wks Mon 9/13/21 Fri 9/24/21

62 Contract Signing 2 wks Mon 9/27/21 Fri 10/8/21

Project1.mpp CSI St. Louis Project Schedule

Page 1 J - 12 - 7



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

63 Commencement of Construction 1 day Mon 10/11/21 Mon 10/11/21

Project1.mpp CSI St. Louis Project Schedule

Page 2 J - 12 - 8



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Solar Group Buy – Grow Solar (Authority to Support) 

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      YES 

BACKGROUND:  On February 25, 2019, the City Council voted unanimously to sign a statement 
of support for Solar Energy – “Mayors for Solar Energy”. 

One of the methods to achieve the purpose of this Council action is the development of a local 
program.  In April 2019, the Green Practices Commission discussed the development of a program 
for University City and unanimously reached a favorable conclusion in that direction.  To this 
extent, staff reviewed the proposal of the program received from Ms. Glenda Abney at the Missouri 
Botanical Garden (see attachment) with the below findings: 

Missouri Botanical Garden’s EarthWays Center (EWC), the sustainability division at the Garden, is 
working with Midwest Renewable Energy Association (MREA) to host “Grow Solar STL”, a regional 
solar energy education and purchase program for the greater St. Louis region.  This group-buy 
program is planned to be utilized for residents of Maplewood, Richmond Heights, Clayton, 
University City, and the City of St. Louis. The group-buy program works by bringing smaller solar 
array projects together, so everyone participating gets a better rate for an actual solar array for 
their own particular location. 

Through Grow Solar STL, “Solar Power Hour” presentations will be available to cities and towns 
throughout the five municipal and city region during which one of our solar group buy experts will 
educate attendees about the program, explain the process for getting a free solar assessment and 
energy system estimate, and answer questions about installation and financial incentives.  

This program is developed, funded and administered by the EarthWays Center and the MREA. 
The cities are only asked to promote and support the program.  Under the program, if utilized by 
University City, the city staff would assist by communicating the University City “Solar Power 
Hours” via social media, website, etc. and helping to determine appropriate locations for education 
sessions throughout University City.  No staffing is needed for any other aspects of the program. 

This solar group buy is based off the Grow Solar Metro East program funded and led by the 
Midwest Renewable Energy Association, which has seen great successes throughout Madison 
County.  The residents typically saw at 15% discount through the group buy program. The Metro 
East program area population is approximately 500,000, The Grow Solar STL program area is 
approximately 400,000. 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Manager recommends providing a written expression of support in 
order to obtain a potential beneficial outcome for University City residents without the need to 
commit staff resources to administer the program or allocation of any costs out of the City budget. 

ATTACHMENT:  July 23, 2019 Request For Promotional Support from University City 

J - 13 - 1



J - 13 - 2



 

 
 
July 23, 2019 

RE: Grow Solar STL request for Promotional Support from University City, Missouri  

 

Good morning! 

 

Missouri Botanical Garden’s EarthWays Center (EWC), the sustainability division at the Garden, 

is working with Midwest Renewable Energy Association (MREA) to host “Grow Solar STL” a 

regional solar energy education and purchase program that we have established in the greater 

St. Louis region. This group-buy program will be for residents of Maplewood, Richmond Heights, 

Clayton, University City, and the City of St. Louis. The group buy program works by bringing 

smaller solar array projects together, so everyone participating gets a better rate for an actual 

solar array for their own particular location. 

 

We would like your support for Grow Solar STL and have come together with MREA to educate 

our region about the benefits of solar energy and to provide an opportunity to help individuals 

and small business operators to obtain a high-quality, reduced-priced solar energy system 

professionally installed at their home or small business. You may have heard about the success 

of similar programs in the Metro East/East Central Illinois, and other locations in Illinois 

including Urbana-Champaign and Bloomington-Normal.  

 

With the current utility rebates, Federal and state incentives and the savings available through a 

group purchase program, this year is the most opportune time to adopt solar power. We hear 

from many homeowners they are interested in solar but are looking for the easiest way to 

understand how to engage in receiving this benefit. We will be holding our “Solar Power Hour” 

presentations to cities and towns throughout the five municipal and city region during which 

one of our solar group buy experts will educate attendees about the program, explain the 

process for getting a free solar assessment and energy system estimate, and answer questions 

about installation and financial incentives. 

 

To make this program work, we would like the support of local leaders: elected officials; city and 

town staff; agency representatives. You are the people who know what your community needs, 

and how much it can benefit from clean, reduced-price solar energy. Will you help us help your 

community?  

 

We would like your endorsement of our program, and would be proud to feature you as one of 

the program's sponsors. We would be glad to share this information with additional staff or 

Councils in University City as needed. If there are agencies or organizations that you could 

suggest for us to connect with in your community, we would be very grateful for any contact 

J - 13 - 3



 

information you would share. If there is a public venue - town hall, library, restaurant or other 

meeting space - that we could use or you would suggest for a presentation to interested 

citizens, please let us know. There is no cost for these presentations, and people are under no 

obligation to sign up for or purchase goods or services.   

For more information about the Grow Solar STL program: https://www.growsolarstl.org 

 

Timeline and Program Steps 

August 1: Initial deadline to respond regarding your interest in continuing the conversation if 

your municipality/city wants to participate in the Solarize Program. Even if you don’t participate 

as a municipality/city, residents of your area are welcome to participate in the program; 

however, we can have much better outreach with your help!  Please provide the best 

name(s)/contact information for your promotional representative. Joining in can be as simple as 

an email confirmation or you can share a letter of commitment.  If you are interested, you can 

also suggest a few community members who might make good volunteers to help us in 

physically distributing posters and flyers and helping set up a few events in your area. 

 

Starting August 3: EWC and MREA will begin conducting the educational sessions (Solar Power 

Hours). EWC provides the speaker for Power Hours and MREA creates website and promotional 

materials. Interested homeowners sign up to have the installer give an estimate. If the 

homeowner wants to proceed they will need to commit by the end of October and sign a 

contract with the installer. NOTE: We will begin the educational sessions and hope to add your 

logo as a promotional partner whenever it is approved, even if after the sessions have begun. 

 

Please Note: 

• MREA will contract with only one solar installer. 

• No formal agreement/contract with the municipality or city is needed. 

• There is no liability for any community; the installer carries the liability and 

communities, EWC and MREA are held harmless. 

• Participation has no cost to your city aside from staff time to support whatever 

promotional components you choose. However, if you want your 

inspection/permitting staff to get some additional training, MREA can provide an 

online training option for a minimal fee.  

 

We look forward to rolling out this effective and worthwhile program in University City. 

Thank you for considering our request to join us as a promotional partner. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Glenda Abney 

Director, EarthWays Center of Missouri Botanical Garden 

Glenda.abney@mobot.org; office 314-577-0288 or cell 314-302-2368 

J - 13 - 4



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE   August 12, 2019        

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: EDRST Funding Recommendations 

AGENDA SECTION:   City Manager’s Report 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

At the July 9 meeting of the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board (EDRST), the 
following requests were approved to recommend to City Council for final approval during 
the FY 20 funding period: 

U City Farmers market for $28,500 – events and operations  
St. Louis Artworks for $11,100 – Mural project for youth workforce skills development 
U City School District, EMT Training for $68,300  
U City in Bloom for $50,573 – Olive Blvd and Delmar Loop Planters  
University City Façade Improvement Program for $150,000 

The total of these projects is $308,473.  Budgeted funding available is $367,018 with 
reserves totaling $1,195,474.    

Action on the funding requests from the Loop Special Business District (LSBD) were 
deferred until City finance staff can reconcile the accounts with the LSBD.  Applications for 
a second round of funding are due on September 6. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Manager concurs with the EDRST Boards recommendation with one modification. 
St. Louis Artworks has agreed to change the location of the mural project to the interior of 
the City’s parking garage, to be painted directly on a wall, rather than an interior location at 
Barbara Jordan Elementary school.   As such, the City Manager recommends approval of 
the mural project to be changed to the Delmar Parking Garage. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• EDRST Funding Applications for all projects submitted.

K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 1 - 13



K - 1 - 14



K - 1 - 15



K - 1 - 16



K - 1 - 17



K - 1 - 18



K - 1 - 19



K - 1 - 20



K - 1 - 21



K - 1 - 22



K - 1 - 23



K - 1 - 24



K - 1 - 25



K - 1 - 26



K - 1 - 27



K - 1 - 28



K - 1 - 29



K - 1 - 30



K - 1 - 31



K - 1 - 32



K - 1 - 33



K - 1 - 34



K - 1 - 35



K - 1 - 36



K - 1 - 37



K - 1 - 38



K - 1 - 39



K - 1 - 40



K - 1 - 41



K - 1 - 42



K - 1 - 43



K - 1 - 44



K - 1 - 45



K - 1 - 46



K - 1 - 47



K - 1 - 48



K - 1 - 49



K - 1 - 50



K - 1 - 51



K - 1 - 52



K - 1 - 53



K - 1 - 54



K - 1 - 55



K - 1 - 56



K - 1 - 57



K - 1 - 58



K - 1 - 59



K - 1 - 60



K - 1 - 61



K - 1 - 62



K - 1 - 63



K - 1 - 64



K - 1 - 65



K - 1 - 66



K - 1 - 67



K - 1 - 68



K - 1 - 69



K - 1 - 70



K - 1 - 71



K - 1 - 72



K - 1 - 73



K - 1 - 74



K - 1 - 75



K - 1 - 76



K - 1 - 77



K - 1 - 78



K - 1 - 79



K - 1 - 80



K - 1 - 81



K - 1 - 82



K - 1 - 83



K - 1 - 84



K - 1 - 85



K - 1 - 86



K - 1 - 87



K - 1 - 88



K - 1 - 89



K - 1 - 90



K - 1 - 91



K - 1 - 92



K - 1 - 93



K - 1 - 94



K - 1 - 95



K - 1 - 96



K - 1 - 97



K - 1 - 98



K - 1 - 99



K - 1 - 100



K - 1 - 101



K - 1 - 102



K - 1 - 103



K - 1 - 104



K - 1 - 105



K - 1 - 106



K - 1 - 107



K - 1 - 108



K - 1 - 109



K - 1 - 110



K - 1 - 111



K - 1 - 112



K - 1 - 113



K - 1 - 114



K - 1 - 115



K - 1 - 116



K - 1 - 117



K - 1 - 118



K - 1 - 119



K - 1 - 120



K - 1 - 121



K - 1 - 122



K - 1 - 123



K - 1 - 124



K - 1 - 125



K - 1 - 126



K - 1 - 127



K - 1 - 128



K - 1 - 129



K - 1 - 130



K - 1 - 131



K - 1 - 132



K - 1 - 133



K - 1 - 134



K - 1 - 135



K - 1 - 136



K - 1 - 137



K - 1 - 138



K - 1 - 139



K - 1 - 140



K - 1 - 141



K - 1 - 142



K - 1 - 143



K - 1 - 144



  
 

  
 
 
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Municipal Park Grant Resolution – Kaufman and Mooney Parks  
 
          AGENDA SECTION: New Business – Resolution 2019-11 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:     No 
______________________       ____________ 
 

 
 BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
 

As you may recall, the FY2020 CIP budget included funding in part for the removal and 
replacement of playgrounds in both Eastgate and Rabe Parks, however, in the course of 
conducting individual park audits, it was determined that both Kaufman and Mooney Park 
playground surfaces (poured in place rubber) are either at or beyond their ten (10) year 
average lifespan and are showing signs of breakdown and hardness due to weather and 
extreme wear. As such, Parks Staff recommended that the Kaufman and Mooney 
Playgrounds should take precedence over the Eastgate and Rabe Park Playgrounds 
based on conditions and safety concerns.  Accordingly, the Park Commission at the July 
2019 meeting, voted unanimously to recommend moving forward with an application of a 
Municipal Parks Construction Grant for the removal and replacement of both playground 
surfaces. The preliminary cost estimate is $130,822.00. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
City Manager recommends that the City Council approve the submission of a Municipal 
Park Grant application for the removal and replacement of both playground surfaces. If the 
grant is approved, the expenditure for the reimbursable ($130,822.00) project funding will 
come from the FY2020 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) as outlined in University City’s 
5-year CIP (Project# PR20-002, PW20/24 “Park Improvements”) and included in the 
FY2020 budget approval. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    
 

• Resolution 

N - 1 - 1



RESOLUTION 2019- 11 

RESOLUTION FOR MUNICIPAL PARK GRANT 

WHEREAS, the Park, Recreation and Forestry Department with the support of the Parks 
Commission of University City deems it necessary to improve public parks or facilities, more 
specifically known as Kaufman and Mooney Parks, to serve its citizens as well as those in the 
metropolitan area.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:  

1. An application is made to the Municipal Parks Grant Program in the County of St. Louis
for a grant-in-aid for some or all the costs to complete work at both Kaufman and
Mooney Parks; including but not limited to the removal of poured in place playground
safety surfacing and construction of new poured in place playground safety surfacing,
reimbursable by the Commission upon completion by the City.

2. That a project proposal be prepared and submitted to the Municipal Parks Grant
Commission.

3. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to sign and execute the necessary
documents for forwarding the project proposal application and later execute an agreement
for a grant-in-aid from the Municipal Parks Grant Commission.

4. If a grant is awarded, the City of University City will enter into an agreement or contract
with the Commission regarding said grant.

PASSED AND RESOLVED THIS DAY OF , 2019. 

______________________ Attest: ____________________ 
Terry Crow, Mayor  LaRette Reese, City Clerk 

N - 1 - 2



  
 

  
 
 
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Municipal Park Planning Grant Resolution – Greensfelder Park  
 
          AGENDA SECTION: New Business – Resolution 2019-12 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:  No 
 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
 
The Parks, Recreation and Forestry Staff along with the Parks Commission has identified the 
need to create a Needs Assessment Report and Conceptual Master Plan which will serve as a 
guideline for future improvements to Greensfelder Park. 
 
Greenfelder Park is a 6.75-acre neighborhood park located north of Kempland Place and Polk 
Ave. Over the past several years park amenities such as athletic fields and playgrounds have 
been removed from the park in part due to age and the fact that portions of the park is prone to 
minor but frequent storm water issues caused by runoff from a neighboring property. 
 
As such, the goal is to apply for a Municipal Parks Planning Grant (80/20 match. Total grant 
funding not to exceed $6,400.00 with a City match of $1,600.00) to create a Needs 
Assessment Report and Conceptual Master Plan which will serve as a guideline for future park 
improvements, as well as a supportive document for applying for various grants in the future.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   

 
City Manager recommends that the City Council approve the submission of a Municipal Park 
Planning Grant application for the development of a Needs Assessment Report and Conceptual 
Master Plan. If the grant is approved, expenditures for the project funding will come from the 
FY2020 Parks Maintenance Budget. 
 
 ATTACHMENTS:    

 
• Resolution 

N - 2 - 1



RESOLUTION 2019-12 

RESOLUTION FOR MUNICIPAL PARK PLANNING GRANT 

WHEREAS, the Department of Parks, Recreation and Forestry with support of the Parks 
Commission of University City deems it necessary to improve a public park or facility, more 
specifically known as Greensfelder Park, to serve its citizens as well as those in the metropolitan 
area.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:  

1. An application is made to the Municipal Parks Grant Program in the County of St. Louis
for a grant-in-aid for eighty percent (80%) or six thousand four hundred dollars and no
cents ($6,400.00) of the cost to complete a Needs Assessment Report and Conceptual
Master Plan for Greensfelder Park.

2. That a planning grant proposal be prepared and submitted to the Municipal Parks Grant
Commission.

3. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to sign and execute the necessary
documents for forwarding the planning grant proposal application and later execute an
agreement for a grant-in-aid from the Municipal Parks Grant Commission.

4. If a grant is awarded, the City of University City will enter into an agreement or contract
with the Commission regarding said grant.

PASSED AND RESOLVED THIS DAY OF , 2019. 

______________________ Attest: ____________________ 
Terry Crow, Mayor  LaRette Reese, City Clerk 

N - 2 - 2



  
 

  
 
 
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 12, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Municipal Park Grant Resolution – Ackert Park  
 
          AGENDA SECTION: New Business – Resolution 2019-13 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?      No 
______________________________       _____ 
 

 
 BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
 

The approved Parks Master Plan submitted in 2008 identified the need to redesign Ackert 
Park. Then in 2010, the Parkview Gardens Parks Plan was presented to City Council. This 
plan in part, identified and made recommendations to redesign or redevelop Ackert Park. 
In July of 2019, the City hired Gateway Design Studio to develop a Conceptual Design 
Plan for the redevelopment of Ackert Park. At the July 16, 2019 Park Commission 
meeting, the Commission voted unanimously to recommend moving forward with an 
application of a Municipal Parks Construction Grant for the redevelopment of Ackert Park.  
   
Depending on the level of funding received from the grant, development would most likely 
include additional perimeter lighting, ADA sidewalk improvements, sculpture playground, 
park benches, trash cans, drinking fountains, signage, shade structures, landscaping, and 
a splash pad/fountain.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
City Manager recommends that the City Council approve the submission of a Municipal 
Park Grant application to complete the improvements contained in the Ackert Park 
Conceptual Design Plan. If the grant is approved, the expenditure for the reimbursable 
($394,178.00) part of the project funding will come from the FY2020 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) as outlined in University City’s 5-year CIP (Project# PR20-002, PW20/24 
“Park Improvements”) and included in the FY2020 budget approval. 
 
 
 ATTACHMENTS:    
 

• Resolution 

N - 3 - 1



RESOLUTION 2019- 13 

RESOLUTION FOR MUNICIPAL PARK GRANT 

WHEREAS, the Department of Parks, Recreation and Forestry with support of the Parks 
Commission of University City deems it necessary to improve a public park or facility, more 
specifically known as Ackert Park, to serve its citizens as well as those in the metropolitan area.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:  

1. An application is made to the Municipal Parks Grant Program in the County of St. Louis
for a grant-in-aid for some or all the costs to complete the Ackert Park Redevelopment
Plan; including but not limited to the redevelopment and construction of a sculpture
playground, ADA Access, lighting, park benches, trash cans, drinking fountains, signage,
shade structures, landscaping, and a splash pad/fountain, reimbursable by the
Commission upon completion by the City.

2. That a project proposal be prepared and submitted to the Municipal Parks Grant
Commission.

3. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to sign and execute the necessary
documents for forwarding the project proposal application and later execute an agreement
for a grant-in-aid from the Municipal Parks Grant Commission.

4. If a grant is awarded, the City of University City will enter into an agreement or contract
with the Commission regarding said grant.

PASSED AND RESOLVED THIS DAY OF , 2019. 

______________________ Attest: ____________________ 
Terry Crow, Mayor  LaRette Reese, City Clerk 

N - 3 - 2


	Proclamation - U City Class of 1964 - 2019.pdf
	Blank Page

	2019-07-08 Draft Reg Minutes.pdf
	Blank Page

	2019-07-08 Draft Study Minutes - Dog Park.pdf
	STUDY SESSION
	5th Floor of City Hall
	6801 Delmar
	July 8, 2019

	I2 - Public Hearing Liquor License - Poke Doke.pdf
	Blank Page

	J1 - New Liquor License Application.pdf
	Blank Page

	J3 - Position Reclassification - Parks Crew Leader.pdf
	Parks Crew Leader Job Description.pdf
	Job Purpose:
	Essential Functions
	Qualifications:
	Performs other duties as assigned.
	Responsible for following all prescribed safety rules and regulations; and utilizing and wearing appropriate safety gear.
	Follows and upholds City and departmental rules, regulations, policies and procedures.
	Reports to work free from the effects of drugs/controlled substances and/or alcohol, and free from impairment due to prescription drugs.
	Maintains regular attendance.
	The City reserves the right to require an employee in this position to work overtime including during emergency situations (defined as any natural or man-made disaster that may or may not necessitate the relocation of City personnel or citizens).  In ...
	Overall Physical Strength Demands:
	Work Environment:
	EnviroNmental Conditions:
	Visual ActivitiEs:
	Noise Exposure:
	Signature – Review and Comments:
	Comments: ____________________________________________________________________


	J4 - TAP Ackert Improvements Construction Award.pdf
	Blank Page

	J6 - Office365 All.pdf
	Blank Page

	J7 - Leaf Collection Contractor FY20.pdf
	Blank Page

	J10 -  Ambulance Ratification.pdf
	Blank Page

	Extension Packet.pdf
	6901 Delmar CUP Extension Request
	doc05716420190807193120
	CSI St louis Memo_190807 (002)
	CSI St Louis project schedule_190807 (002)

	Extension Packet.pdf
	6901 Delmar CUP Extension Request
	doc05716420190807193120
	CSI St louis Memo_190807 (002)
	CSI St Louis project schedule_190807 (002)

	J13 - Solar Group Buy.pdf
	Blank Page




